
Page 1 of 3 

Dedicated to 

Satisfying our Community’s 

Water Needs 

AGENDA 
MESA WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Wednesday, December 8, 2021 
1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA 92627 

4:30 p.m. Regular Board Meeting 

Teleconference Site: 
2871 Alanzo Lane 

Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

Members of the public may attend and participate in the meeting at both locations. 
 Notice will be posted on the door at the teleconference site.  

CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Items Not on the Agenda: Members of the public are invited to address the Board 
regarding items which are not appearing on the posted agenda. Each speaker shall be 
limited to three minutes. The Board will set aside 30 minutes for public comments for items 
not appearing on the posted agenda. 

Items on the Agenda: Members of the public shall be permitted to comment on agenda items 
before action is taken, or after the Board has discussed the item. Each speaker shall be limited 
to three minutes. The Board will set aside 60 minutes for public comments for items appearing 
on the posted agenda. 

ITEMS TO BE ADDED, REMOVED, OR REORDERED ON THE AGENDA 
At the discretion of the Board, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed 
as an Action Item, may be deliberated and may be subject to action by the Board. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:  
Approve all matters under the Consent Calendar by one motion unless a Board member, staff, 
or a member of the public requests a separate action. 

1. Approve minutes of adjourned regular Board meeting of November 9, 2021.
2. Approve minutes of regular Board meeting of November 10, 2021.
3. Approve minutes of adjourned regular Board meeting of November 16, 2021.
4. Approve attendance considerations (additions, changes, deletions).
5. Board Schedule:

• Conferences, Seminars, and Meetings
• Board Calendar

6. Confirm the Board of Directors’ Regular Board Meeting schedule for Calendar Year 2022; 
and reschedule the Tuesday, November 22, 2022 Board of Directors’ Committee Meeting 
to Tuesday, November 15, 2022 and cancel the Tuesday, December 27, 2022 Board of 
Directors’ Committee Meeting.



     

Page 2 of 3 

PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 
7. FISCAL YEAR 2021 AUDIT RESULTS AND ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL 

REPORT: 
 
Recommendation: Approve Mesa Water District’s audited financial statements for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 and direct staff to finalize the Fiscal Year 2021 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.  
 

8. CAPTIVE INSURANCE: 
 
Recommendation: Receive the presentation. 
 

ACTION ITEMS:  
 

9. SETTING THE BOUNDARIES FOR THE DIVISIONS OF MESA WATER DISTRICT: 
 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 1557 Setting the Boundaries for the 
Divisions of Mesa Water District and Superseding Resolution No. 1445. 
 

10. CLAIM OF MARCO DANOVA: 
 
Recommendation: Approve and settle the claim with Marco Danova for an amount 
not to exceed $4,000.  
 

11. CLAIM OF DAVITH KEO: 
 
Recommendation: Approve and settle the claim with Davith Keo for an amount not 
to exceed $9,000. 

 
REPORTS: 
 
12. REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER: 

• Key Indicators Report  
• Other (no enclosure) 

 
13. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
14. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (AB 1234) PER CA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 53232.3 (D) 

 
15. OTHER (NO ENCLOSURE) 
 

 
 
 



     

Page 3 of 3 

In compliance with California law and the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need disability-related modifications or accommodations, 
including auxiliary aids or services in order to participate in the meeting, or if you need the agenda provided in an alternative format, please call 
the District Secretary at (949) 631-1205. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable Mesa Water District (Mesa Water®) to make 
reasonable arrangements to accommodate your requests. 
 
Members of the public desiring to make verbal comments using a translator to present their comments into English shall be provided reasonable 
time accommodations that are consistent with California law. 
 
Agenda materials that are public records, which have been distributed to a majority of the Mesa Water Board of Directors (Board), will be available 
for public inspection at the District Boardroom, 1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA and on Mesa Water’s website at www.MesaWater.org.  If 
materials are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior or during the meeting, the materials will be available at the time of the meeting. 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURN TO AN ADJOURNED REGULAR BOARD MEETING SCHEDULED FOR 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2021 AT 3:30 P.M. 



 

Page 1 of 2 

Dedicated to 

Satisfying our Community’s 

Water Needs 

 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MESA WATER DISTRICT 
Tuesday, November 9, 2021 

1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA 92627 
3:30 p.m. Adjourned Regular Board Meeting 

 
CALL TO ORDER The meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order at 

3:30 p.m. by President DePasquale.  
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Director Fisler led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  

Directors Present Marice H. DePasquale, President  
Jim Atkinson, Director (arrived at 3:35 p.m.) 
Fred R. Bockmiller, P.E., Director 
James R. Fisler, Director 
 

Directors Absent Shawn Dewane, Vice President  
  
Staff Present Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager 

Denise Garcia, Administrative Services Manager/ 
District Secretary 

Celeste Carrillo, Public Affairs Coordinator  
Kaitlyn Norris, MPA, Public Affairs Specialist  

  
Others Present Brenda Deeley, CEO, Brenda Deeley PR 
 Shane Veera, Director, Brain Builders STEM Education 
 Maris Ensing, Founder, Mad Systems, Inc. 
 Stacy Larios, Graphics Designer, Mad Systems, Inc. 
 Anthony Zorrilla, Designer, Mad Systems, Inc. 
 Brandon Phillips, AV Technician, Mad Systems, Inc. 
 Jessica Bill, Coordinator/Office Manager, Mad Systems, Inc. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
President DePasquale asked for public comments on items not on the agenda.  
 
There were no comments and President DePasquale proceeded with the meeting. 

 
ITEMS TO BE ADDED, REMOVED, OR REORDERED ON THE AGENDA 

 
General Manager Shoenberger reported there were no items to be added, removed, or 
reordered on the agenda.  

 
PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

 
1. MESA WATER EDUCATION CENTER: 

 



Mesa Water Adjourned Regular Board Meeting November 9, 2021 

Page 2 of 2 

GM Shoenberger introduced Brain Builders STEM Education Director Shane Veera and 
Mad Systems, Inc. Founder Maris Ensing who provided a brief overview of the topic.  
 
Mr. Ensing introduced his team. 
 
Attendees left the Boardroom at 3:39 p.m. to view the exhibits on display in the parking 
area.   
 
Attendees returned to the Boardroom at 4:40 p.m. 
 
Mr. Veera introduced the educational concept of the Mesa Water Education Center. 
 
Discussion ensued amongst the Board.  
 
Mr. Veera responded to questions from the Board and they thanked the Messrs. Ensing 
and Veera for the information. 

 
ACTION ITEMS:  

 
None. 

 
REPORTS: 

 
2. REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER 

 
3. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 
4. OTHER (NO ENCLOSURE) 
 
President DePasquale adjourned the meeting at 5:21 p.m. to a Regular Board Meeting scheduled 
for Wednesday, November 10, 2021 at 4:30 p.m. 
 

Approved: 
 
 
  
Marice H. DePasquale, President 
 
 
  
Denise Garcia, District Secretary 
 
Recording Secretary: Sharon D. Brimer 



 

Page 1 of 4 

Dedicated to 

Satisfying our Community’s 

Water Needs 

 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MESA WATER DISTRICT 
Wednesday, November 10, 2021 

1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA 92627 
4:30 p.m. Regular Board Meeting 

 
CALL TO ORDER The meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order at 

4:30 p.m. by President DePasquale.  
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Director Bockmiller led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  

Directors Present Marice H. DePasquale, President  
Shawn Dewane, Vice President (teleconference, disconnected at 4:50 p.m.) 
Jim Atkinson, Director (arrived at 4:36 p.m.) 

Fred R. Bockmiller, P.E., Director 
James R. Fisler, Director 
 

Directors Absent None 
  
Staff Present Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager 

Phil Lauri, P.E., Assistant General Manager 
Denise Garcia, Administrative Services Manager/ 

District Secretary 
Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA, Chief Financial Officer/ 

District Treasurer 
Stacie Sheek, Customer Services Manager 
Tracy Manning, Water Operations Manager 
Kurt Lind, Business Administrator 
Rob Anslow, Partner, Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo  

  
Others Present None 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
President DePasquale asked for public comments on items not on the agenda.  
 
There was no public present.  
 
There were no public members present at the teleconference site. 
 
District Secretary Garcia stated that one Mesa Water Director was attending the meeting via 
teleconference. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that for each action, a roll call vote was taken in accordance with California 
Government Code Section 54953(b)(2) which states, “all votes taken during a teleconferenced 
meeting shall be by roll call.” 
 
President DePasquale proceeded with the meeting. 



Mesa Water Regular Board Meeting November 10, 2021 

Page 2 of 4 

ITEMS TO BE ADDED, REMOVED, OR REORDERED ON THE AGENDA 
 
General Manager Shoenberger reported there were no items to be added, removed, or 
reordered on the agenda. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:  
Approve all matters under the Consent Calendar by one motion unless a Board member, staff, 
or a member of the public requests a separate action. 
 
1. Approve minutes of adjourned regular Board meeting of October 5, 2021. 
2. Approve minutes of regular Board meeting of October 13, 2021. 
3. Approve minutes of adjourned regular Board meeting of October 19, 2021. 
4. Approve minutes of adjourned regular Board meeting of October 26, 2021. 
5. Approve attendance considerations (additions, changes, deletions). 
6. Board Schedule: 

• Conferences, Seminars, and Meetings 
• Board Calendar   

7. Receive the Quarterly Training Report for July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021. 
 

President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 
 

MOTION 
 

Motion by Director Bockmiller, second by Director Fisler, to approve Items 1 – 7 of the 
Consent Calendar. Motion passed  4 – 1, by the following roll call vote: 

  
AYES:  DIRECTORS Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS Atkinson 

 
PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 
8. CAPTIVE INSURANCE: 

 
Chief Financial Officer Khalifa provided an overview of the topic. 

 
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
MOTION 
 

Motion by Director Bockmiller, second by Vice President Dewane, to adopt Resolution No. 
1551 Authorizing the Formation of the Captive Insurance Corporation Domiciled in the 
State of Utah. Motion passed 4 – 1, by the following roll call vote: 

  
AYES:  DIRECTORS Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS Atkinson 

 
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 



Mesa Water Regular Board Meeting November 10, 2021 

Page 3 of 4 

MOTION 
 

Motion by Director Bockmiller, second by Vice President Dewane, to approve a contract at 
a fee of 0.35% to Capital Group as the Investment Advisor for the Mesa Water Risk 
Retention Corporation, and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute the contract. 
Motion passed 5 – 0, by the following roll call vote: 

  
AYES:  DIRECTORS Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None 

 
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
MOTION 
 

Motion by Director Atkinson, second by Vice President Dewane, to approve a one-year 
contract not to exceed $20,000 to Johnson Lambert as the Audit Firm for the Mesa Water 
Risk Retention Corporation, and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute the 
contract.  Motion passed 5 – 0, by the following roll call vote: 

  
AYES:  DIRECTORS Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None 

 
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
MOTION 
 

Motion by Director Bockmiller, second by Director Atkinson, to appoint the following officers 
to the Mesa Water Risk Retention Corporation:  
1. Paul Shoenberger as Chief Executive Officer, 
2. Denise Garcia as Corporate Secretary; and 
3. Marwan Khalifa as Corporate Treasurer. 

 
Motion passed 5 – 0, by the following roll call vote: 
  
AYES:  DIRECTORS  Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS  None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS  None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS  None. 

 
ACTION ITEMS:  
 
9. ALERTOC PARTICIPATION: 

 
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
 
 



Mesa Water Regular Board Meeting November 10, 2021 

Page 4 of 4 

MOTION 
 

Motion by Director Bockmiller, second by Director Atkinson, to approve the Memorandum 
of Understanding between the County of Orange and Mesa Water District for use of the 
countywide mass notification system, and authorize execution of the memorandum. 
Motion passed 4 – 1, with Vice President Dewane absent. 

 
10. FEDERAL ADVOCACY RE. PER- AND POLYFLUOROALKYL SUBSTANCES (PFAS): 

 
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
MOTION 
 

Motion by Director Atkinson, second by Director Fisler, to  
a. Adopt Resolution No. 1550 Supporting Federal PFAS Legislation that Protects 

Ratepayers and Water/Wastewater Agencies; and, 
b. Approve advocacy letters related to PFAS Federal legislation to Orange County’s 

Federal legislative delegation. 
 

Motion passed 4 – 1, with Vice President Dewane absent. 
 

REPORTS: 
 
11. REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER: 

• October Key Indicators Report  
• Other (no enclosure) 

 
12. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 
13. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (AB 1234) PER CA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 53232.3 

(D) 
 

14. OTHER (NO ENCLOSURE) 
 
President DePasquale adjourned the meeting at 5:00 p.m. to an Adjourned Regular Board 
Meeting scheduled for Tuesday, November 16, 2021 at 3:30 p.m. 
 

Approved: 
 
 
  
Marice H. DePasquale, President 
 
 
  
Denise Garcia, District Secretary 
 
Recording Secretary: Sharon D. Brimer 



 

Page 1 of 7 

Dedicated to 

Satisfying our Community’s 

Water Needs 

 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MESA WATER DISTRICT 
Tuesday, November 16, 2021 

1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA 92627 
3:30 p.m. Adjourned Regular Board Meeting 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

CALL TO ORDER The meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order at 
3:30 p.m. by President DePasquale.  

  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Vice President Dewane led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  

Directors Present Marice H. DePasquale, President  
Shawn Dewane, Vice President 
Jim Atkinson, Director (teleconference) 
Fred R. Bockmiller, P.E., Director 
James R. Fisler, Director 
 

Directors Absent None 
  
Staff Present Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager 

Phil Lauri, P.E., Assistant General Manager 
Denise Garcia, Administrative Services Manager/ 

District Secretary 
Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA, Chief Financial Officer/ 

District Treasurer  
Tracy Manning, Water Operations Manager 
Stacy Taylor, Water Policy Manager 
Kurt Lind, Business Administrator 
Celeste Carrilo, Public Affairs Coordinator 
Rob Anslow, Partner, Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo 

  
Others Present Scott Brehmer, Principal, Citadel EHS, Inc. 

Steve Gagnon, Senior Manager, Raftelis Financial Consultants, 
Inc. 

 Theresa Jurotich, Manager, Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. 
(teleconference) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
President DePasquale asked for public comments on items not on the agenda.  
 
There were no comments.  
 
There were no public members present at the teleconference site. 
 
District Secretary Garcia stated that one Mesa Water Director was attending the meeting via 
teleconference. 



Mesa Water Adjourned Regular Board Meeting November 16, 2021 

Page 2 of 7 

Ms. Garcia stated that for each action, a roll call vote was taken in accordance with California 
Government Code Section 54953(b)(2) which states, “all votes taken during a teleconferenced 
meeting shall be by roll call.” 
 
President DePasquale proceeded with the meeting. 
 
ITEMS TO BE ADDED, REMOVED, OR REORDERED ON THE AGENDA 
 
Vice President Dewane reported that there was an item that arose after the agenda was posted 
and action needs to be taken prior to the next Board meeting. Vice President Dewane 
recommended adding Item 1A – Citizens Redistricting Commission.  
 
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
MOTION 
 

Motion by Director Bockmiller, second by Director Fisler, to add Item 1A – Citizens 
Redistricting Commission to the agenda. Motion passed 5 – 0, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
AYES:  DIRECTORS Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None 
 

ITEM 1A – CITIZENS REDISTRICTING COMMISSION: 
 
        Discussion ensued amongst the Board. 

 
        President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
MOTION 
 

Motion by Vice President Dewane, second by Director Bockmiller, to: 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 1556 Requesting that the California Citizens Redistricting 

Commission Keep the Cities of Costa Mesa and Newport Beach in the Same Assembly, 
Senate and Congressional Districts; and  

b. Authorize the Board President and Vice President to work with staff to finalize a letter to 
the Citizens Redistricting Commission, and subject to approval by the Board President 
and General Manager. Motion passed 4 – 1, by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES:  DIRECTORS Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS Atkinson 

  
 CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:  

Approve all matters under the Consent Calendar by one motion unless a Board member, staff, 
or a member of the public requests a separate action. 
 
1. Receive and file the Developer Project Status Report. 



Mesa Water Adjourned Regular Board Meeting November 16, 2021 

Page 3 of 7 

2. Receive and file the Mesa Water and Other Agency Projects Status Report. 
3. Receive and file the Water Quality Call Report. 
4. Receive and file the Water Operations Status Report. 
5. Receive and file the Accounts Paid Listing. 
6. Receive and file the Monthly Financial Reports. 
7. Receive and file the Major Staff Projects. 
8. Receive and file the State Advocacy Update. 
9. Receive and file the Orange County Update. 
10. Receive and file the Outreach Update. 
11. Receive and file the Fiscal Year 2022 First Quarter Financial Update. 

 
        President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
MOTION 
 

Motion by Director Fisler, second by Vice President Dewane, to approve Items 1 – 11 of the 
Consent Calendar. Motion passed 4 – 1, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  DIRECTORS Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS Atkinson 

 
PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 
12. FISCAL YEAR 2021 ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAM AUDIT: 

 
Business Administrator Lind introduced Citadel EHS, Inc. Principal Scott Brehmer who 
provided a presentation that highlighted the following: 

• The Road to Excellence 
• Scorecard 
• 2021 Significant Improvements 
• Experience Modification Rate (EMR) 
• 2021 Areas That Require Improvement 
• Next Steps 

 
Mr. Brehmer responded to questions from the Board and they thanked him for the 
presentation. 

 
13. WATER RATE STUDY: 

 
Chief Financial Officer Khalifa introduced Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. Senior 
Manager Steve Gagnon who provided a presentation that highlighted the following: 

• Summary 
• Financial Plan Assumptions 
• Proposed Financial Plan 
• Days Cash 
• Debt Coverage 
• Rate Design 

o Changes Since Last Study 
o October 26, 2021 Committee Recommendation 



Mesa Water Adjourned Regular Board Meeting November 16, 2021 

Page 4 of 7 

• Rates 
o Basic Charge Derivation of FY 2023 
o Bi-Monthly Basic Charge, $/bill 
o Monthly Basic Charge, $/bill 
o Approximate Annual Capital Charge by Meter Size, $/yr 
o Consumption Rate, $/ccf 
o Bi-Monthly Private Fireline Service, $/bill 
o Monthly Private Fireline Service, $/bill 

• Typical Bill & Next Steps 
o Average Single Family Customer Bill Impact (5/8” meter) and 24 ccf bi-monthly 
o Average Single Family Customer Bill Impact 
o Next Steps 

 
Mr. Gagnon responded to questions from the Board and they thanked him for the 
presentation. 

 
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
MOTION 
 

Motion by Vice President Dewane, second by Director Bockmiller, to: 
a. Receive the draft report of the Water Rate Study; 
b. Direct staff to finalize the proposed rate schedule for Calendar Years 2023 through 

2027; 
d. Direct staff to schedule two public hearings for January 12, 2022. 
 
Motion passed 5 – 0, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  DIRECTORS Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None 

 
Discussion ensued amongst the Board. 
 
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
MOTION 
 

Motion by Vice President Dewane, second by Director Bockmiller, to: 
c. Direct staff to proceed with Proposition 218 notice preparation and mailing, with 

modifications. 
 

Motion passed 5 – 0, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  DIRECTORS Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None 

 
 



Mesa Water Adjourned Regular Board Meeting November 16, 2021 

Page 5 of 7 

ACTION ITEMS:  
 

14. TRAVEL AND BUSINESS EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT POLICY: 
 
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
MOTION 

 
Motion by Director Bockmiller, second by Vice President Dewane, to adopt Resolution 
No. 1552 Revising the Travel and Business Expense Reimbursement Policy, with 
modifications, Superseding Resolution No. 1467. Motion passed 5 – 0, by the following 
roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  DIRECTORS Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None 
 

15. COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE POLICY: 
 

President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 
 

MOTION 
 

Motion by Vice President Dewane, second by Director Bockmiller, to adopt Resolution 
No. 1553 Revising the Communications Equipment and Service Policy Superseding 
Resolution No. 1474. Motion passed 5 – 0, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  DIRECTORS Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None 
 

16. DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 2021 URBAN AND MULTIBENEFIT 
DROUGHT RELIEF GRANT PROGRAM: 
 
GM Shoenberger provided a brief overview of the topic.  
 
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
MOTION 
 

Motion by Vice President Dewane, second by Director Atkinson, to: 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 1554 Authorizing the Grant Application, Acceptance, and 

Execution for the Mesa Water Drought-Resilient Water Supply Project; and, 
b. Adopt Resolution No. 1555 Authorizing the Grant Application, Acceptance, and 

Execution for the Mesa Water Drought-Resilient Water Storage Project. 
 
Motion passed 4 – 1, by the following roll call vote: 
 

 



Mesa Water Adjourned Regular Board Meeting November 16, 2021 

Page 6 of 7 

AYES:  DIRECTORS Atkinson, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS Bockmiller 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None 
 

REPORTS: 
 
17. REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER 
 
18. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 
19. FISCAL YEAR 2021 ANNUAL REIMBURSEMENT REPORT 
 
20. OTHER (NO ENCLOSURE) 

 
RECESS 
 
President DePasquale declared a recess at 4:56 p.m.  
 
The Board meeting reconvened at 4:59 p.m. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

 
President DePasquale announced that the Board was going into Closed Session at 5:00 p.m. 
 
21. PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957.6:  

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  
TITLE:  GENERAL MANAGER 

 
The Board returned to Open Session at 6:05 p.m. 

 
President DePasquale announced that the Board conducted one Closed Session with the 
General Manager pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957.6. Action will be taken 
under Item 22. 

 
ACTION ITEMS (CONT.):  
 
22. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FOR THE GENERAL MANAGER: 

 
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments. 

 
MOTION 
 

Motion by President DePasquale, second by Director Bockmiller, to approve a 6.5 percent 
increase to the General Manager’s base salary effective September 24, 2021 and a one-
time performance incentive of $23,000 payable for the pay period ending December 30, 
2021. Motion passed 5 – 0, by the following roll call vote: 
 
 



Mesa Water Adjourned Regular Board Meeting November 16, 2021 

Page 7 of 7 

AYES:  DIRECTORS Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale 
NOES: DIRECTORS None 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None 

 
 

President DePasquale adjourned the meeting at 6:05 p.m. to a Regular Board Meeting scheduled 
for Thursday, December 8, 2021 at 4:30 p.m. 

 
Approved: 
 
 
  
Marice H. DePasquale, President 
 
 
  
Denise Garcia, District Secretary 

 
Recording Secretary: Sharon D. Brimer 

 



 

Page 1 of 1 

Dedicated to 

Satisfying our Community’s 

Water Needs 

MEMORANDUM 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
In accordance with Ordinance No. 31, adopted April 27, 2021, authorize attendance at 
conferences, seminars, meetings, and events. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
Goal #1: Provide a safe, abundant, and reliable water supply. 
Goal #2: Practice perpetual infrastructure renewal and improvement. 
Goal #3: Be financially responsible and transparent. 
Goal #4: Increase public awareness about Mesa Water and about water. 
Goal #5: Attract and retain skilled employees. 
Goal #6: Provide outstanding customer service. 
Goal #7: Actively participate in regional and statewide water issues.  
 
PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION 
 
At its June 10, 2021 meeting, the Board of Directors (Board) approved Fiscal Year 2022 
attendance at Conferences, Seminars, Meetings, and Events. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
During the discussion of this item, if any, the Board may choose to delete any item from the list 
and/or may choose to add additional conferences, seminars, meetings, or events for approval, 
subject to available budget or additional appropriation. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None. 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM:  Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager  
DATE: December 8, 2021 
SUBJECT: Attendance at Conferences, Seminars, Meetings, and Events 



Mesa Water Board Meeting of December 8, 2021

 2021 CONFERENCES, SEMINARS, AND MEETINGS:

Page 1 of 1

December 14 - 16, 2021
Colorado River Water Users Association Conference
Las Vegas, NV

 2022 CONFERENCES, SEMINARS, AND MEETINGS:
January 20 - 21, 2022

H2O Women Conference DePasquale
Santa Barbara, CA

February 7, 2022
CMUA Annual Capitol Day
Sacramento, CA

February 9 - 10, 2022
CalDesal Annual Conference
Virtual

February 16 - 18, 2022
Urban Water Institute Spring Conference
Palm Springs, CA

February 21 - 25, 2022
Jt. CA-NV AWWA/AMTA Spring Conference
Las Vegas, NV

March 6 - 9, 2022
WateReuse Symposium
San Antonio, TX

April 3 - 5, 2022
CMUA Annual Conference
San Francisco, CA

April 7 - 8, 2022
P3 Water Summit
San Diego, CA

April 11 - 14, 2022
AWWA CA-NV Annual Spring Conference
Anaheim, CA

May 3 - 6, 2022
ACWA/JPIA Spring Conference
Sacramento, CA

May 17 - 18, 2022
CSDA Legislative Days
Sacramento, CA

June 12 - 15, 2022
AWWA ACE22 Conference
San Antonio, Texas



1 12/1/2021 9:54 AMColleen Grace

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

December 2021
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

January 2022December 2021

Nov 28 29 30 Dec 1 2 3 4
ACWA/JPIA Fall Conference (Pasadena, CA)

8:30am  CANCELED Jt. 
MWDOC/MWD 
Workshop (Virtual)

5:30pm CANCELED OCWD 
Board Meeting (Virtual)

Pay Period Ends
7:30am R/S TO 12/10 

WACO Meeting (Virtual)
6:00pm A Very Vanguard 

Christmas (Vanguard 
University, 55 Fair Drive, 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
8:30am COMBINED 

MWDOC Planning & 
Operations Committee 
and Administration & 
Finance Committee 
Meetings (Conference 

7:30am ISDOC Executive 
Committee Meeting 

9:00am ACC-OC EEW 
Committee Meeting 

6:00pm Costa Mesa City 
Council Meeting (Virtual)

Payday
8:00am LAFCO Meeting  
8:30am R/S to 12/06 
8:30am R/S from 12/15 
9:00am R/S from 12/16 
4:30pm Mesa Water Board 

2:30pm Employee 
Recognition Event 
(Avenue of the Arts) - 
Alison Wade

7:30am R/S FROM 12/3 
WACO Meeting 
(VIRTUAL)

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
Colorado River Water Users Association Conference (Las Vegas, NV)

5:00pm IRWD Board 
Meeting (Virtual)

8:00am OCBC Infrastructure
Committee (Virtual)

3:30pm Mesa Water District
Board Workshop (1965 
Placentia Avenue, Costa 

8:30am R/S to 12/08 
MWDOC Board Meeting 
(VIRTUAL)

5:30pm OCWD Board 
Meeting (Virtual)

8:30am R/S to 12/08 
MWDOC Executive 
Committee Meeting 
(Virtual)

Pay Period Ends

19 20 21 22 23 24 25
8:30am CANCELED  

MWDOC Public Affairs &
Legislation (Virtual)

7:30am WACO Planning 
Committee (VIRTUAL)

6:00pm Costa Mesa City 
Council Meeting (Virtual)

Payday District Holiday

26 27 28 29 30 31 Jan 1, 22
District Holiday (Christmas 

Day Observed)
5:00pm CANCELED IRWD 

Board Meeting (Virtual)

3:30pm CANCELED Mesa 
Water District Board of 
Directors Committee 
Meeting (Mesa Water 
District Boardroom, 1965
Placentia Avenue, Costa 

District Holiday
Pay Period Ends

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY



1 12/2/2021 12:55 PMColleen Grace

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

January 2022
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28

February 2022January 2022

Dec 26 27 28 29 30 31 Jan 1, 22
District Holiday

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
District Holiday
8:30am MWDOC Planning 

& Operations Committee

7:30am ISDOC Executive 
Committee Meeting 
(VIRTUAL)

5:30pm Costa Mesa City 
Council Meeting

Payday
8:30am Jt. MWDOC/MWD 

Workshop
5:30pm OCWD Board 

Meeting

8:00am OCWD 
Communications & 
Legislative Committee

7:30am WACO 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
8:00am LAFCO Meeting
8:00am OCWD Water Issues
8:30am MWDOC Admin 

and Finance Committee 

8:00am OCWD Admin & 
Finance Committee

Pay Period Ends

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
District Holiday 7:30am WACO Planning 

Committee (VIRTUAL)
5:30pm Costa Mesa City 

Council Meeting

Payday
8:30am MWDOC Board 

Meeting
5:30pm OCWD Board 

Meeting

2022 California H2O Women Conference (Santa Barbara, CA)
8:30am MWDOC Executive 

Committee
4:00pm CANCELED Costa 

Mesa Chamber of 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29
8:30am Jt. MWDOC/OCWD 

Meeting 
(MWDOC/OCWD 
Boardroom)

11:30am ISDOC Quarterly 
Meeting (VIRTUAL)

Pay Period Ends

30 31 Feb 1 2 3 4 5

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY



1 12/2/2021 12:56 PMColleen Grace

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28

February 2022
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

March 2022February 2022

Jan 30 31 Feb 1 2 3 4 5
7:30am ISDOC Executive 

Committee Meeting 
(VIRTUAL)

5:30pm Costa Mesa City 
Council Meeting

Payday
8:30am Jt. MWDOC/MWD 

Workshop
5:30pm OCWD Board 

Meeting

8:00am OCWD 
Communications & 
Legislative Committee

7:30am WACO 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12
CMUA Annual Capitol Day 

(Sacramento, CA)
8:30am MWDOC Planning 

& Operations Committee

CalDesal Annual Conference (VIrtual)
8:00am LAFCO Meeting
8:00am OCWD Water Issues
8:30am MWDOC Admin 

and Finance Committee 

8:00am OCWD Admin & 
Finance Committee

Pay Period Ends

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
7:30am WACO Planning 

Committee (VIRTUAL)
9:30am ACC-OC EEW 

Committee Meeting 
5:30pm Costa Mesa City 

Council Meeting

Urban Water Institute Spring Water Conference (Palm Springs, CA)
ACWA Quarterly Committee Forum  (TBD)

Payday
8:30am MWDOC Board 

Meeting
5:30pm OCWD Board 

8:30am MWDOC Executive 
Committee

20 21 22 23 24 25 26
Jt. CA-NV AWWA/AMTA Spring Conference (Las Vegas, NV)

District Holiday 8:30am Jt. MWDOC/OCWD Pay Period Ends

27 28 Mar 1 2 3 4 5

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY



 

Page 1 of 2 

Dedicated to 

Satisfying our Community’s 

Water Needs 

MEMORANDUM 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

a. Confirm the Board of Directors’ Regular Board Meeting schedule for Calendar Year 2022; 
and, 

b. Reschedule the Tuesday, November 22, 2022 Board of Directors’ Committee Meeting to 
Tuesday, November 15, 2022 and cancel the Tuesday, December 27, 2022 Board of 
Directors’ Committee Meeting. 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
Goal #1: Provide a safe, abundant, and reliable water supply. 
Goal #2: Practice perpetual infrastructure renewal and improvement. 
Goal #3: Be financially responsible and transparent. 
Goal #4: Increase public awareness about Mesa Water and about water. 
Goal #5: Attract and retain skilled employees. 
Goal #6: Provide outstanding customer service. 
Goal #7: Actively participate in regional and statewide water issues.  
 
PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION 
 
None.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Annually, the Board of Directors reviews the calendars to set the date and time for the meetings to 
be held the upcoming year. 
 
Following are the proposed 2022 Board of Directors’ meeting dates; in 2022 there are no conflicts or 
holidays on the second Wednesday of each month at 4:30 p.m.: 

• January 12 
• February 9 
• March 9 
• April 13 
• May 11 
• June 8 
• July 13 
• August 10 
• September 14 
• October 12 
• November 9 
• December 14 

TO:  Board of Directors   
FROM:  Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager 
DATE: December 8, 2022 
SUBJECT: Board and Committee Meeting Schedule 



 

Page 2 of 2 

Following are the proposed 2022 Board of Directors’ Committee meeting dates; in the case that the 
date has a conflict or is scheduled on a holiday, the meeting will move to the week before or may be 
canceled (as noted with an asterisk below): 

• January 25 
• February 22 
• March 22 
• April 26 
• May 24 
• June 28 
• July 26 
• August 23 
• September 27 
• October 25 
• November 22* – reschedule to Tuesday, November 15 
• December 27* – cancel 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None. 
 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 

Dedicated to 

Satisfying our Community’s 

Water Needs 

MEMORANDUM 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve Mesa Water District’s audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2021 and direct staff to finalize the Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
Goal #3: Be financially responsible and transparent. 
 
PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 audit for Mesa Water District (Mesa Water®) has been completed 
and the draft Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) is attached and will be presented 
at the December 8, 2021 meeting. The ACFR was prepared in accordance with guidelines 
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). CliftonLarsonAllen 
(CLA) conducted an independent audit of Mesa Water’s financial records in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and has expressed an unmodified opinion on the 
District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.  
 
Representatives from CLA will attend the Board of Directors (Board) meeting to present the 
results of the audit and a summary of the financial results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2021. 
 
FY 2021 financial results (as of June 30, 2021) are summarized below: 
• Mesa Water has met or exceeded its Fiscal Year Budgeted Target goals for Days Cash 

Ratio and Cash on Hand: 
o Days Cash Ratio was 593 days (Target 593 Days) 
o Cash on Hand was $43.5MM (Target $43.3MM) 

 
Statement of Net Position (Balance Sheet) 
 
Highlights include: 

• Current assets, including cash, investments and receivables, increased $7.9MM, 
primarily due to the increase in net position.  

• Non-current assets decreased $6.1MM, primarily due to the usage of the 2020 
Certificates of Participation (COPs) Restricted Funds. 

• Current liabilities increased $2.8MM, primarily due to an increase in accounts payable, 
accrued expenses and accrued interest payable. 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM:  Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA, Chief Financial Officer 
DATE: December 8, 2021 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2021 Audit Results and Annual Comprehensive 

Financial Report 
 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 

• Non-current liabilities decreased by $3.2MM, primarily due to the paying down of the 
2017 COPs. 
 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Income Statement) 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the Change in Net Position was an increase (income) 
of $9.7MM.  
 
Highlights include:  

• Operating revenues increased from $36.7MM to $39.9MM, due to the increase in 
monthly meter service charges and water consumption rate. 

• Operating expenses were below budgeted, but increased by $1.2MM over the previous 
year. 

• Capital contributions decreased $1.0MM, as a result of a slow-down of new 
developments in the City of Costa Mesa. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
In Fiscal Year 2022, $35,960 is budgeted for Auditing Services; $34,400 has been spent to 
date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A:  Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended 2021 
Attachment B:  CliftonLarsonAllen Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over 

Financial Reporting for the Fiscal Year Ended 2021 
 
 

 
 











































































































































































































































 

Page 1 of 2 

Dedicated to 

Satisfying our Community’s 

Water Needs 

MEMORANDUM 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive the presentation.  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
Goal #1: Provide a safe, abundant, and reliable water supply. 
Goal #2: Practice perpetual infrastructure renewal and improvement. 
Goal #3: Be financially responsible and transparent. 
Goal #6: Provide outstanding customer service. 
 
PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION 
 
At its February 23, 2021 Committee meeting, the Board of Directors (Board) directed staff to form 
a captive insurance company (captive) to include hiring consultants and to fund the captive with 
an amount of $30MM from reserves and retaining $10MM in working capital. 
 
At its June 22, 2021 Committee meeting, the Board approved contracts with Strategic Risk 
Solutions, Kirton McConkie Law Firm, and Bickmore Actuarial to assist with the formation and 
management of the captive.  
 
At its August 24, 2021 Committee meeting, the Board directed staff to agendize, at a future 
meeting, a recommendation regarding the composition of the Board of Directors for the captive.  
 
At its September 8, 2021 meeting, the Board approved the formation of the Mesa Water Risk 
Retention Corporation as a subsidiary of Mesa Water District (Mesa Water®) and for the Board of 
the Corporation to consist of the current Mesa Water Board and Lorin Barker. The Board also 
approved the current Mesa Water Vice President and President to become the President and Vice 
President, respectively, of the Mesa Water Risk Retention Corporation. 
 
At its October 5, 2021 meeting, the Board received a presentation regarding funding options for 
the captive and directed staff to agendize, at a future meeting, the 12-year captive option. 
 
At its November 10, 2021 meeting,  the Board adopted Resolution No. 1551 Authorizing the 
Formation of the Captive Insurance Corporation Domiciled in the State of Utah; approved Capital 
Group as the Investment Advisor and Johnson Lambert as the Audit Firm for the Mesa Water Risk 
Retention Corporation; and appointed Paul Shoenberger as Chief Executive Officer, Denise 
Garcia as Corporate Secretary and Marwan Khalifa as Corporate Treasurer of the Mesa Water 
Risk Retention Corporation. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Board directed staff to agendize a Captive Insurance update at the December 8, 2021 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM:  Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA, Chief Financial Officer 
DATE: December 8, 2021 
SUBJECT: Captive Insurance  



 

Page 2 of 2 

meeting.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None. 



 

Page 1 of 3 

Dedicated to 

Satisfying our Community’s 

Water Needs 

MEMORANDUM 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 1557 Setting the Boundaries for the Divisions of Mesa Water District and 
Superseding Resolution No. 1445. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
Goal #3: Be financially responsible and transparent. 
Goal #4: Increase public awareness about Mesa Water and about water. 
Goal #6: Provide outstanding customer service. 
 
PRIOR BOARD ACTION 
 
At its December 19, 1991 meeting, the Board of Directors (Board) adopted Resolution No. 
1090 Modifying the Boundaries of the Divisions of the District, based on 1990 federal census 
data. 
 
At its June 22, 2004 meeting, the Board adopted Resolution No. 1302 Modifying the 
Boundaries of the Divisions of the District, based on 2000 federal census data. 
 
At its September 2011 meeting, the Board directed staff to reevaluate the Mesa Water Division 
boundary compliance requirements in July of 2013 to ensure that the 2010 federal census data 
was fully populated and complete. 
 
At its April 23, 2013 meeting, the Engineering & Operations (E&O) Committee directed staff to 
perform an analysis to serve as the basis for adjustments to Mesa Water’s then-current 
Division boundaries in compliance with the Water Code, Elections Code and State law and 
present the item for Board consideration at its June 25, 2013 E& O Committee Meeting. 
 
At its April 10, 2014, the Board approved the updated Mesa Water Division boundaries and 
adopted Resolution No. 1445 Amending the Boundaries for the Divisions of Mesa Water 
District, based on 2010 federal census data and other factors considered by the Board, 
Superseding Resolution No. 1302. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Mesa Water District (Mesa Water®) was originally formed under the provisions of the Costa 
Mesa District Merger Law (California Water Code (Water Code) Sections 33200 et seq.). As 
set out in Water Code Section 33247, the Directors of Mesa Water are elected by Divisions, as 
established and designated by the Board pursuant to State of California law. 
 
Every ten years, the United States Census Bureau performs and compiles census data.  
Sections 33247 and 30733 of the Water Code and Section 22000 of the California Elections 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM:  Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager 
DATE: December 8, 2021 
SUBJECT: Setting the Boundaries for the Divisions of Mesa Water District 



 

Page 2 of 3 

Code (Elections Code) require the Board to adopt a resolution dividing Mesa Water into five 
divisions as nearly equal in population as practicable for the purposes of electing Mesa 
Water’s Directors.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Elections Code Section 22000.1 requires that the Division boundaries for Mesa Water, based 
on the 2020 federal census data, must be set by resolution no later than April 17, 2022, for 
elections occurring in 2022 and thereafter. Following adoption, such resolution is to be 
submitted to the Orange County Registrar of Voters’ office. 
 
In order to comply with the requirements of the Water Code and Elections Code, information 
from the 2020 federal census data was gathered to determine the estimated population in each 
of the current Mesa Water Divisions.   
 
The 2020 federal census data determined the total estimated population within Mesa Water’s 
boundaries to be 109,513. The District’s estimated population was determined using a 
geographical information system (GIS), overlaying Mesa Water’s existing Division boundaries 
and the current census tract boundaries.  Evaluation of the 2020 federal census population 
data showed the following: 
• The 2020 federal census data based Mesa Water Division Mean Population is 21,903; and 
• Based on the 2014 adopted Division boundaries and the 2020 federal census data, the 

population within the individual divisions were all within 5% of the Division Mean 
Population:   
o Divisions 1, 3, and 5 are 4%, 2%, and 1% above the Division Mean Population, 

respectively.  
o Divisions 2 and 4 are 5% and 2% below the Division Mean Population, respectively. 
o These population variations are each within the recommended variation parameters for 

such population-based election/representation areas. 
 
Based on the 2020 federal census data and the Division alignment factors considered by the 
Board in 2014, staff recommends maintaining (setting) the current Mesa Water Divisional 
boundaries for elections occurring in 2022 and thereafter to be the same as the Divisional 
boundaries adopted by the Board through Resolution No. 1445. Resolution No. 1557, including 
the associated legal description of such Division boundaries, is attached for consideration by 
the Board. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW 
 
Mesa Water’s Legal Counsel – Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo -  has reviewed Draft 
Resolution No. 1557 and is of the view that, by adoption of Resolution No. 1557 - using the 
proposed Division boundaries, the Board will have met the legal requirements of Water Code 
Sections 33247 and 30722, Sections 22000, 22000.1 and 22002 of the Elections Code and 
related requirements. 
 
Following the adoption of Resolution No. 1557, the Resolution and attachments will be 
provided to the Orange County Registrar of Voters’ office. 



 

Page 3 of 3 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
In Fiscal Year 2022, no funds have been budgeted for Division Boundaries; $4,000 in funds 
have been spent from Cash on Hand.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A:  Map of Proposed Mesa Water District Divisions 
Attachment B:  Map of Proposed & Existing Divisions, with Federal Census Data 
Attachment C:  Draft Resolution No. 1557 
Attachment D:  Resolution No. 1445, Redline 
 
 

 
 



W. 19TH

VICTORIA

E. 17TH

ORANGE

21ST

A°

?s

%&l(

MACARTHUR

SUNFLOWER

BAKER

H
AR

B
O

R

FA
IR

VI
EWADAMS

WILSON
WILSON

?s

Division 1

Division 2

Division 3

Division 4

Division 5

O

0 4,0002,000
Feet

November 2021

Division 1 22,727    
Division 2 20,747    
Division 3 22,393    
Division 4 21,497    
Division 5 22,149    
Total Population 109,513  

2020 POPULATION



W. 19TH

VICTORIA

E. 17TH

ORANGE

21ST

A°

?s

%&l(

MACARTHUR

SUNFLOWER

BAKER

HA
RB

OR

FA
IR

VI
EWADAMS

WILSON
WILSON

?s

O

0 4,0002,000
Feet

November 2021

Legend
Current Division Boundary (Adopted 2014)
District Boundary

Division 1
21,90322,727 +3.8%

Current Mean % Difference

Division 2
21,90320,747 -5.3%

Current Mean % Difference

Division 3
21,90322,393 +2.2%

Current Mean % Difference

Division 4
21,90321,497 -1.9%

Current Mean % Difference

Division 5
21,90322,149 1.1%

Current Mean % Difference



 

Resolution No. 1557 Page 1 of 2 Adopted: December 8, 2021 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1557 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
MESA WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SETTING THE BOUNDARIES FOR 
THE DIVISIONS OF MESA WATER DISTRICT AND 

SUPERSEDING RESOLUTION NO. 1445 
 
 

WHEREAS, Mesa Water District (Mesa Water® or District) is a county water district 
organized and operating pursuant to the provisions of the laws of the State of California (State 
or California); and 

 
WHEREAS, Mesa Water was formed pursuant to Water Code Section 33200 and 

following (the Costa Mesa District Merger Law) and was formed with its Directors elected by 
Division; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (Board), as required by Sections 33247 and 30733 

of the California Water Code (Water Code) and Section 22000 of the California Elections Code 
(Elections Code), has previously determined and set the boundaries of the five Divisions for 
purposes of electing Directors of the District to represent such Divisions; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 30733(a) of the Water Code and Section 22000 of the Elections 

Code provide that the boundaries of such Divisions shall be as nearly equal in population as 
practical; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 30733(d) of the Water Code and Sections 22000 and 22002 of the 

Elections Code provide that adjustments to, or confirmation of, the Division boundaries shall 
be made by resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 22000.1 of the Elections Code currently provides that for the 

Division boundaries review based on the 2020 federal census data, the resolution to set such 
boundaries must be adopted not later than April 17, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has considered information provided with respect to the 2020 

federal census data with the goal of considering the boundaries of the five (5) Mesa Water 
Divisions so that such Divisions are, or shall be, as far as practicable (and in light of other 
considerations), equal in population; and 
 

WHEREAS, through the adoption of Resolution No. 1445, adopted by the Board in 2014, 
the Board considered other information relating to the Division boundaries, including, but not 
limited to, geography, cohesiveness, contiguity, integrity, and compactness of territory, and 
community of interests of Mesa Water, conformance with the boundaries of census tracts and 
consistency with existing voting precincts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has received information with respect to the 2020 federal census 

data with respect to the requirement that the boundaries of such Divisions shall be as nearly 
equal in population as practical; and   
 



 

Resolution No. 1557 Page 2 of 2 Adopted: December 8, 2021 
 

WHEREAS, the Board has received information with respect to conformance of the 
proposed boundaries of the Mesa Water Divisions with the applicable statutory requirements; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined, based upon the foregoing, that it is appropriate 
at this time to set the boundaries of the Mesa Water Divisions by way of this Resolution and to 
take certain related actions. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MESA WATER DISTRICT 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. The boundaries of the Divisions of Mesa Water District shall conform to the 

boundaries described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by this reference. 

 
Section 2. Resolution No. 1445 shall be superseded by this Resolution No. 1557 upon 

the adoption hereof by the Board. 
 
Section 3. The provisions and directives of this Resolution shall be effective from and 

after December 8, 2021. 
 

Section 4. A certified copy of this Resolution, with all Exhibits hereto, shall be filed with 
the Orange County Registrar of Voters Office promptly after adoption of this 
Resolution, and in no event later than April 17, 2022. 

 
Section 5. The General Manager, District Secretary and other Mesa Water officers and 

staff and Mesa Water consultants are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all other and further necessary and appropriate actions as may be required or 
desirable to carry out the determinations and directives set forth in this 
Resolution. 

 
ADOPTED, SIGNED, and APPROVED this 8th day of December 2021 by a roll call vote. 
 
AYES: DIRECTORS:  
NOES: DIRECTORS:  
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:  
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:  

 
 
 
  
 Marice H. DePasquale 
 President, Board of Directors 

 
Denise Garcia  
District Secretary  



 

Resolution No. 1557: Exhibit A Page 1 of 4 Adopted: December 8, 2021  

RESOLUTION NO. 1557 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
MESA WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SETTING THE BOUNDARIES FOR 
THE DIVISIONS OF MESA WATER DISTRICT AND 

SUPERSEDING RESOLUTION NO. 1445 
 
 

DIVISION NO. 1 
 
Commencing at the centerline intersection of Pomona Avenue and  Twentieth Street, said point 
being the Point of Beginning; thence  westerly along the centerline of  West Twentieth Street 
to the centerline of Placentia Avenue; thence northerly along the centerline of Placentia Avenue 
to the southern boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A; thence westerly along the southern 
boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A to the extreme westerly boundary of the Water District as 
described in the California Statues of 1959, Chapter 1377, as amended by the California 
Statues of 1976, Chapter 678; thence southwesterly, easterly, southwesterly, southeasterly, 
southwesterly, southeasterly, northeasterly, northwesterly, northeasterly along the boundary 
lines of the Water District, to the centerline intersection of Fifteenth Street and Old Newport 
Boulevard thence northeasterly along the centerline of Old Newport Boulevard to the centerline 
Industrial Way; Thence northwesterly along the centerline of Industrial Way to the centerline of 
Newport Boulevard; thence northeasterly along the centerline of Newport Boulevard to the 
centerline of Seventeenth Street; thence southwesterly along the centerline of Seventeenth 
Street to the centerline of Superior Avenue; thence northeasterly along the centerline of 
Superior Avenue to the centerline of Anaheim Avenue; thence northerly along the centerline of 
Anaheim Avenue to the centerline of Nineteenth Street; thence westerly along the centerline 
of Nineteenth Street to the centerline of Pomona Avenue; thence northerly along the centerline 
of Pomona Avenue to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Excepting therefrom all parcels not annexed to the Water District. 
 
DIVISION NO. 2 
 
Commencing at the centerline intersection of Pomona Avenue and Victoria Street, said point 
being the Point of Beginning; thence southerly along the centerline of Pomona Avenue to the 
centerline of Twentieth Street; thence westerly along the centerline of Twentieth Street  to the 
centerline of Placentia Avenue; thence northerly along the centerline of Placentia Avenue to 
the southern boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A; thence westerly along the southern 
boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A to the extreme westerly boundary of the Water District as 
described in the California Statues of 1959, Chapter 1377, as amended by the California 
Statues of 1976, Chapter 678, thence northeasterly along said Water District boundary to the 
centerline of State Route 405; thence southeasterly along the centerline of State Route 405 to 
the centerline of Harbor Boulevard; thence southerly along the centerline of Harbor Boulevard 
to the extension of the southern boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A; thence westerly along 



 

Resolution No. 1557: Exhibit A Page 2 of 4 Adopted: December 8, 2021  

the extension of the southern boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A to the centerline of Fountain 
Way West; thence southerly along the centerline of Fountain Way West to the centerline of 
Joann Street; thence easterly along the centerline of Joann Street to the centerline of Maple 
Street; thence southerly along the centerline of Maple Street to the centerline of Wilson Street 
thence easterly along the centerline of Wilson Street to the centerline of Maple Street; thence 
southerly along the centerline of Maple Street to the centerline of Victoria Street; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Victoria Street to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Excepting therefrom all parcels not annexed to the Water District. 
 
DIVISION NO. 3 
 
Commencing at the centerline intersection of Harbor Boulevard and State Route 405, said point 
being the Point of Beginning; thence northwesterly along the centerline of State Route 405 to 
the extreme westerly boundary of the Water District as described in the California Statues of 
1959, Chapter 1377, as amended by the California Statues of 1976, Chapter 678, thence 
northeasterly, easterly, southerly, easterly, northerly, easterly, northerly, easterly, southerly, 
easterly, southerly and southwesterly along said boundary of the Water District to a point on 
the northeasterly line of Lot 134, Block 7, Irvine’s Subdivision in the County of Orange, State 
of California, as shown on a map recorded in Book 1, page 88 of Miscellaneous Maps, Records 
of Orange County, California, said point being also on the centerline of State Route 55; thence 
southwesterly along the centerline of State Route 55 to the centerline of Baker Street; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Baker Street to the centerline of Fairview Road;  thence 
southerly along the centerline of Fairview Road to the centerline of Merrimac Way; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Merrimac Way to the centerline of Harbor Boulevard; thence 
northerly along the centerline of Harbor Boulevard to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Excepting therefrom all parcels not annexed to the Water District. 
 
DIVISION NO. 4 
 
Commencing at the centerline intersection of Harbor Boulevard and Merrimac Way, said point 
being the Point of Beginning; thence easterly along the centerline of Merrimac Way to the 
centerline of Fairview Road; thence northerly along the centerline of Fairview Road to the 
centerline of Baker Street; thence easterly along the centerline of Baker Street to the centerline 
of  State Route 55; thence northeasterly along the centerline of State Route 55 to a point on 
the northeasterly line of Lot 134, Block 7, Irvine’s Subdivision in the County of Orange, State 
of California, as shown on a map recorded in Book 1, page 88 of Miscellaneous Maps, Records 
of Orange County, California, said point also being on the northern boundary of the Water 
District; thence southeasterly,  southwesterly, southeasterly, northeasterly, southeasterly, 
southwesterly, northwesterly, southwesterly, southeasterly, southwesterly, northwesterly and 
southwesterly along the boundary of the Water District as described in the California Statues 
of 1959, Chapter 1377, as amended by the California Statues of 1976, Chapter 678 to the 
centerline of Twenty-third Street; thence northwesterly along Twenty-third Street and the 
northwesterly prolongation thereof  to the centerline of State Route 55; thence southwesterly 
along the centerline of State Route 55 to the centerline of Ford Road; thence northwesterly and 
westerly along the centerline of Ford Road to the centerline of Harbor Boulevard; thence 
northerly along the centerline of Harbor Boulevard to the centerline of Victoria Street; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Victoria Street to the centerline of Maple Street; thence 



 

Resolution No. 1557: Exhibit A Page 3 of 4 Adopted: December 8, 2021  

northerly along the centerline of Maple Street to the centerline of  Wilson Street, thence 
westerly along the centerline of Wilson Street to the centerline of Maple  Street; thence 
northerly along Maple Street to the centerline of Joann Street; thence westerly along the 
centerline of Joann Street to the center line of Fountain Way West thence northerly along the 
centerline of Fountain Way West to the southern boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A; thence 
easterly along the southern boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A to the centerline of Harbor 
Boulevard; thence northerly along the centerline of Harbor Boulevard to the Point of Beginning 
 
Excepting therefrom all parcels not annexed to the Water District. 
 
DIVISION 5 
 
Commencing at the centerline intersection of Harbor Boulevard and Ford Road, said point 
being the Point of Beginning; thence easterly and southeasterly along the centerline of Ford 
Road to the centerline of State Route 55; thence northeasterly along the centerline of State 
Route 55 to the northwesterly prolongation of the centerline of Twenty-third Street; said 
centerline being a part of the Water District boundary as described in the California Statues of 
1959, Chapter 1377, as amended by the California Statues of 1976, Chapter 678; thence 
southeasterly along said northwesterly prolongation and said centerline of Twenty-third Street, 
said centerline also being on the boundary of said Water District; thence southeasterly, 
northeasterly, southeasterly, southwesterly, southeasterly, southwesterly, southeasterly, 
southwesterly, northwesterly, southwesterly  and northwesterly along said Water District 
boundary to the centerline intersection of Fifteenth Street and Old Newport Boulevard thence 
northeasterly along the centerline of Old Newport Boulevard to the centerline Industrial Way; 
Thence northwesterly along the centerline of  Industrial Way to the centerline of Newport 
Boulevard; thence northeasterly along the centerline of Newport Boulevard to the centerline of 
Seventeenth Street; thence southwesterly along the centerline of Seventeenth Street to the 
centerline of Superior Avenue; thence northeasterly along the centerline of Superior Avenue to 
the centerline of Anaheim Avenue; thence northerly along the centerline of Anaheim Avenue 
to the centerline of Nineteenth Street; thence westerly along the centerline of Nineteenth Street 
to the centerline of Pomona Avenue; thence northerly along the centerline of Pomona Avenue 
to the centerline of Victoria Street; thence easterly along the centerline of Victoria Street to the 
centerline of Harbor Boulevard; thence southerly along the centerline of Harbor Boulevard to 
the Point of Beginning. 
 
Excepting therefrom all parcels not annexed to the Water District. 
 



 

Resolution No. 1557: Exhibit A Page 4 of 4 Adopted: December 8, 2021  

EXHIBIT A – Map Portion 
 

*Based on 2020 Census data



 

Resolution No. 14451557 Page 1 of 2 Adopted: April 10, 2014December 8, 2021 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14451557 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
MESA WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SETTINGAMENDING THE BOUNDARIES FOR 
THE DIVISIONS OF MESA WATER DISTRICT AND 

SUPERSEDING RESOLUTION NO. 13021445 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Mesa Water District (previously known as Mesa Consolidated Water 
District) (Mesa Water® or District) is a county water district organized and operating pursuant 
to the provisions of the laws of the State of according to California law(State or California); and 

 
WHEREAS, Mesa Water was formed pursuant to Water Code Sections 33200 and 

following (the Costa Mesa District Merger Law) and was formed with its Directors elected by 
Division; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (Board), as required by Sections 33247 and 30733 

of the California Water Code (Water Code) and Section 22000 of the California Elections Code 
(Elections Code), has previously determined and set the boundaries of the five Divisions for 
purposes of electing Directors of the District to represent such said Divisions; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 30733(ac) of the Water Code and Section 22000 of the Elections 

Code provide that that changes to the boundaries of such Divisions shall keep them as shall 
be as nearly equal in populationsize as practical and be made at least one hundred eighty (180) 
days prior to General  Election date; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 30733(d) of the Water Code and Sections 22000 and 22002 of the 

Elections Code provide that adjustments to, or confirmation of, the Division boundaries shall 
be made by resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS,  Section 22000.1 of the Elections Code currently provides that for the 

Division boundaries review based on the 2020 federal census data, the resolution to set such 
boundaries must be adopted not later than April 17, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has considered information provided with respect to the 20210 

federal census data with the goal of consideringadjusting the boundaries of the five (5) Mesa 
Water Divisions so that such Divisions are, or shall be, as far as practicable (and in light of 
other considerations), equal in population; and 
 

WHEREAS, through the adoption of Resolution No. 1445, adopted by the Board in 2014, 
the Board has considered other information relating to the proposed revised Division 
boundaries, including, but not limited to, geography, cohesiveness, contiguity, integrity, and 
compactness of territory, and community of interests of Mesa Water, conformance with the 
boundaries of census tracts and consistency with existing voting precincts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has received information with respect to the 2020 federal census 

data with respect to the requirement that the boundaries of such Divisions shall be as nearly 
equal in population as practical; and   



 

Resolution No. 14451557 Page 2 of 2 Adopted: April 10, 2014December 8, 2021 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has received information with respect to conformance of the 

proposed revised proposed boundaries of the Mesa Water Divisions with the federal Voting 
Rights Act and registered voter information the applicable statutory requirements; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined, based upon the foregoing, that it is appropriate 
at this time to set adjust and amend the boundaries of the Mesa Water Divisions by way of this 
Resolution and to take certain related actions.; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MESA WATER DISTRICT 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. The boundaries of the Divisions of Mesa Water District shall are hereby 

amended to conform to the boundaries as described inon Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
Section 2. Resolution No. 1302 1445 shall be superseded by this Resolution No. 1445 

1557 upon the adoption hereof by the Board. 
 
Section 3. The provisions and directives of this ResolutionSuch amendment shall be 

effective from and afteron April 10, 2014December 8, 2021. 
 

Section 4. A certified copy of this Resolution, with all Exhibits heretoattachments, shall 
be filed conveyed towith the Orange County Registrar of Voters Office 
promptly after adoption of this Resolution April 10, 2014December 8, 2021, 
and in no event later than April 17, 2022. 

 
Section 5. The General Manager, the District Secretary and other Mesa Water officers 

and staff and Mesa Water consultants are hereby authorized and directed to 
take all other and further necessary and appropriate actions as may be 
required or desirable to carry out the determinations and directives set forth 
inof this Resolution. 

 
ADOPTED, SIGNED, and APPROVED this 10th 8th day of April 2014December 2021 by a roll 
call vote. 
 
AYES:  DIRECTORS: Atkinson, Bockmiller, Temianka, Dewane, Fisler 
NOES: DIRECTORS:  
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:  
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:  
 

____________________________________ 
James R. Fisler 
President, Board of Directors 

 
___________________________________ 
Coleen L. Monteleone 
District Secretary 
AYES: DIRECTORS:  
NOES: DIRECTORS:  



 

Resolution No. 14451557 Page 3 of 2 Adopted: April 10, 2014December 8, 2021 
 

ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:  
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:  

 
 
 
  
 Marice H. DePasquale 
 President, Board of Directors 

 

Denise Garcia  
District Secretary  



 

Resolution No. XXXX1557: Exhibit A Page 1 of 4 Adopted: December 8, 2021  

RESOLUTION NO. 14451557 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
MESA WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SETTINGAMENDING THE BOUNDARIES FOR 
THE DIVISIONS OF MESA WATER DISTRICT AND 

SUPERSEDING RESOLUTION NO. 13021445 
 
 

DIVISION NO. 1 
 
Commencing at the centerline intersection of Pomona Avenue and  Twentieth Street, said point 
being the Point of Beginning; thence  westerly along the centerline of  West Twentieth Street 
to the centerline of Placentia Avenue; thence northerly along the centerline of Placentia Avenue 
to the southern boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A; thence westerly along the southern 
boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A to the extreme westerly boundary of the Water District as 
described in the California Statues of 1959, Chapter 1377, as amended by the California 
Statues of 1976, Chapter 678; thence southwesterly, easterly, southwesterly, southeasterly, 
southwesterly, southeasterly, northeasterly, northwesterly, northeasterly along the boundary 
lines of the Water District, to the centerline intersection of Fifteenth Street and Old Newport 
Boulevard thence northeasterly along the centerline of Old Newport Boulevard to the centerline 
Industrial Way; Thence northwesterly along the centerline of Industrial Way to the centerline of 
Newport Boulevard; thence northeasterly along the centerline of Newport Boulevard to the 
centerline of Seventeenth Street; thence southwesterly along the centerline of Seventeenth 
Street to the centerline of Superior Avenue; thence northeasterly along the centerline of 
Superior Avenue to the centerline of Anaheim Avenue; thence northerly along the centerline of 
Anaheim Avenue to the centerline of Nineteenth Street; thence westerly along the centerline 
of Nineteenth Street to the centerline of Pomona Avenue; thence northerly along the centerline 
of Pomona Avenue to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Excepting therefrom all parcels not annexed to the Water District. 
 
DIVISION NO. 2 
 
Commencing at the centerline intersection of Pomona Avenue and Victoria Street, said point 
being the Point of Beginning; thence southerly along the centerline of Pomona Avenue to the 
centerline of Twentieth Street; thence westerly along the centerline of Twentieth Street  to the 
centerline of Placentia Avenue; thence northerly along the centerline of Placentia Avenue to 
the southern boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A; thence westerly along the southern 
boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A to the extreme westerly boundary of the Water District as 
described in the California Statues of 1959, Chapter 1377, as amended by the California 
Statues of 1976, Chapter 678, thence northeasterly along said Water District boundary to the 
centerline of State Route 405; thence southeasterly along the centerline of State Route 405 to 
the centerline of Harbor Boulevard; thence southerly along the centerline of Harbor Boulevard 
to the extension of the southern boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A; thence westerly along 



 

Resolution No. XXXX1557: Exhibit A Page 2 of 4 Adopted: December 8, 2021  

the extension of the southern boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A to the centerline of Fountain 
Way West; thence southerly along the centerline of Fountain Way West to the centerline of 
Joann Street; thence easterly along the centerline of Joann Street to the centerline of Maple 
Street; thence southerly along the centerline of Maple Street to the centerline of Wilson Street 
thence easterly along the centerline of Wilson Street to the centerline of Maple Street; thence 
southerly along the centerline of Maple Street to the centerline of Victoria Street; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Victoria Street to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Excepting therefrom all parcels not annexed to the Water District. 
 
DIVISION NO. 3 
 
Commencing at the centerline intersection of Harbor Boulevard and State Route 405, said point 
being the Point of Beginning; thence northwesterly along the centerline of State Route 405 to 
the extreme westerly boundary of the Water District as described in the California Statues of 
1959, Chapter 1377, as amended by the California Statues of 1976, Chapter 678, thence 
northeasterly, easterly, southerly, easterly, northerly, easterly, northerly, easterly, southerly, 
easterly, southerly and southwesterly along said boundary of the Water District to a point on 
the northeasterly line of Lot 134, Block 7, Irvine’s Subdivision in the County of Orange, State 
of California, as shown on a map recorded in Book 1, page 88 of Miscellaneous Maps, Records 
of Orange County, California, said point being also on the centerline of State Route 55; thence 
southwesterly along the centerline of State Route 55 to the centerline of Baker Street; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Baker Street to the centerline of Fairview Road;  thence 
southerly along the centerline of Fairview Road to the centerline of Merrimac Way; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Merrimac Way to the centerline of Harbor Boulevard; thence 
northerly along the centerline of Harbor Boulevard to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Excepting therefrom all parcels not annexed to the Water District. 
 
DIVISION NO. 4 
 
Commencing at the centerline intersection of Harbor Boulevard and Merrimac Way, said point 
being the Point of Beginning; thence easterly along the centerline of Merrimac Way to the 
centerline of Fairview Road; thence northerly along the centerline of Fairview Road to the 
centerline of Baker Street; thence easterly along the centerline of Baker Street to the centerline 
of  State Route 55; thence northeasterly along the centerline of State Route 55 to a point on 
the northeasterly line of Lot 134, Block 7, Irvine’s Subdivision in the County of Orange, State 
of California, as shown on a map recorded in Book 1, page 88 of Miscellaneous Maps, Records 
of Orange County, California, said point also being on the northern boundary of the Water 
District; thence southeasterly,  southwesterly, southeasterly, northeasterly, southeasterly, 
southwesterly, northwesterly, southwesterly, southeasterly, southwesterly, northwesterly and 
southwesterly along the boundary of the Water District as described in the California Statues 
of 1959, Chapter 1377, as amended by the California Statues of 1976, Chapter 678 to the 
centerline of Twenty-third Street; thence northwesterly along Twenty-third Street and the 
northwesterly prolongation thereof  to the centerline of State Route 55; thence southwesterly 
along the centerline of State Route 55 to the centerline of Ford Road; thence northwesterly and 
westerly along the centerline of Ford Road to the centerline of Harbor Boulevard; thence 
northerly along the centerline of Harbor Boulevard to the centerline of Victoria Street; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Victoria Street to the centerline of Maple Street; thence 



 

Resolution No. XXXX1557: Exhibit A Page 3 of 4 Adopted: December 8, 2021  

northerly along the centerline of Maple Street to the centerline of  Wilson Street, thence 
westerly along the centerline of Wilson Street to the centerline of Maple  Street; thence 
northerly along Maple Street to the centerline of Joann Street; thence westerly along the 
centerline of Joann Street to the center line of Fountain Way West thence northerly along the 
centerline of Fountain Way West to the southern boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A; thence 
easterly along the southern boundary of the Banning Tract Lot A to the centerline of Harbor 
Boulevard; thence northerly along the centerline of Harbor Boulevard to the Point of Beginning 
 
Excepting therefrom all parcels not annexed to the Water District. 
 
DIVISION 5 
 
Commencing at the centerline intersection of Harbor Boulevard and Ford Road, said point 
being the Point of Beginning; thence easterly and southeasterly along the centerline of Ford 
Road to the centerline of State Route 55; thence northeasterly along the centerline of State 
Route 55 to the northwesterly prolongation of the centerline of Twenty-third Street; said 
centerline being a part of the Water District boundary as described in the California Statues of 
1959, Chapter 1377, as amended by the California Statues of 1976, Chapter 678; thence 
southeasterly along said northwesterly prolongation and said centerline of Twenty-third Street, 
said centerline also being on the boundary of said Water District; thence southeasterly, 
northeasterly, southeasterly, southwesterly, southeasterly, southwesterly, southeasterly, 
southwesterly, northwesterly, southwesterly  and northwesterly along said Water District 
boundary to the centerline intersection of Fifteenth Street and Old Newport Boulevard thence 
northeasterly along the centerline of Old Newport Boulevard to the centerline Industrial Way; 
Thence northwesterly along the centerline of  Industrial Way to the centerline of Newport 
Boulevard; thence northeasterly along the centerline of Newport Boulevard to the centerline of 
Seventeenth Street; thence southwesterly along the centerline of Seventeenth Street to the 
centerline of Superior Avenue; thence northeasterly along the centerline of Superior Avenue to 
the centerline of Anaheim Avenue; thence northerly along the centerline of Anaheim Avenue 
to the centerline of Nineteenth Street; thence westerly along the centerline of Nineteenth Street 
to the centerline of Pomona Avenue; thence northerly along the centerline of Pomona Avenue 
to the centerline of Victoria Street; thence easterly along the centerline of Victoria Street to the 
centerline of Harbor Boulevard; thence southerly along the centerline of Harbor Boulevard to 
the Point of Beginning. 
 
Excepting therefrom all parcels not annexed to the Water District. 
 



 

Resolution No. XXXX1557: Exhibit A Page 4 of 4 Adopted: December 8, 2021  

EXHIBIT A – Map Portion 
 

*Based on 20102020 Census data



 

Page 1 of 1 

Dedicated to 

Satisfying our Community’s 

Water Needs 

MEMORANDUM 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve and settle the claim with Marco Danova for an amount not to exceed $4,000. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
Goal #3: Be financially responsible and transparent. 
Goal #6: Provide outstanding customer service. 
 
PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
On October 14, 2021 a Mesa Water District (Mesa Water®) vehicle was backed into a parked car 
on Orange Avenue in Costa Mesa. The parked vehicle sustained damage to the driver side front 
fender. The owner of the parked vehicle, Marco Danova, was notified of the accident and he 
submitted a claim to Mesa Water.   
 
LEGAL REVIEW 
 
Staff notified the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
(ACWA/JPIA) of the claim and were advised that, since the claim was related to a minor car 
accident, the District should handle the claim in house. 
 
After consultation with both ACWA/JPIA and Legal Counsel, Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & 
Romo, staff recommends that the Board approve and settle the claim with Marco Danova for an 
amount not to exceed $4,000, which will include Mr. Danova signing a California Release of 
Liability Form. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
 In Fiscal Year 2022, no funds have been budgeted for claims. The claim is estimated for an 
amount not to exceed $4,000; the requested funds will come from Cash on Hand.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

Attachment A: Claim Form  
Attachment B: Department of Motor Vehicles Report of Traffic Accident 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM:  Marwan Khalia, Chief Financial Officer   
DATE: December 8, 2021 
SUBJECT: Claim of Marco Danova 









 

Page 1 of 1 

Dedicated to 

Satisfying our Community’s 

Water Needs 

MEMORANDUM 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve and settle the claim with Davith Keo for an amount not to exceed $9,000. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
Goal #3: Be financially responsible and transparent. 
Goal #6: Provide outstanding customer service. 
 
PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
On October 25, 2021, a Mesa Water District (Mesa Water®) vehicle was backed into a parked car 
near Praxair Welding Gas and Supply Center. The parked vehicle sustained damage to the driver 
side rear body panel, left quarter extension, and rebar. The owner of the parked vehicle, Davith 
Keo, was notified of the accident and he submitted a claim to Mesa Water. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW 
 
Staff notified the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
(ACWA/JPIA) of the claim and were advised that, since the claim was related to a minor car 
accident, the District should handle the claim in house. 
 
After consultation with both ACWA/JPIA and Legal Counsel, Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & 
Romo, staff recommends that the Board approve and settle the claim with Davith Keo for an 
amount not to exceed $9,000, which will include Mr. Keo signing a California Release of Liability 
Form. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
In Fiscal Year 2022, no funds have been budgeted for claims. The claim is estimated for an 
amount not to exceed $9,000; the requested funds will come from Cash on Hand.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

Attachment A: Claim Form 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM:  Marwan Khalifa, Chief Financial Officer   
DATE: December 8, 2021 
SUBJECT: Claim of Davith Keo 





Mesa Water Board Meeting of December 8, 2021 
 

Page 1 of 1 

REPORTS: 
 
12. REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER:  

• November Key Indicators Report 
• Other (no enclosure) 

 

















Mesa Water Board Meeting of December 8, 2021 
 

Page 1 of 1 

REPORTS: 
 
13.  DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 



Mesa Water Board Meeting of December 8, 2021 
 

Page 1 of 1 

DIRECTORS' REPORTS (AB 1234) PER CA GOVERNMENT  
CODE SECTION 53232.3 (d)  
In accordance with CA Government Code 53232.3 (d), the following report identifies the meetings for 
which Mesa Water Directors received expense reimbursement. 

  

Jim Atkinson  Meetings Attended 
Reimbursement Date: Description, Date  
11/01/21 Meeting w/ General Manager, 9/28 
11/03/21 Meeting w/ Mesa Water Director, 11/2 

 
 
Fred R. Bockmiller, P.E. Meetings Attended 
Reimbursement Date: Description, Date  
11/01/21 Meeting w/ General Manager, 9/24 

 
 
Marice H. DePasquale Meetings Attended 
Reimbursement Date: Description, Date  
11/30/21 Daily Pilot Interview, 11/8 
11/30/21 BIA Meeting, 11/12 
11/30/21 AES Site Tour, 11/15 

 
 
Shawn Dewane  Meetings Attended 
Reimbursement Date: Description, Date  
N/A  

 
 
James R. Fisler                                  Meetings Attended 
Reimbursement Date: Description, Date  
11/01/21 Rossmoor/Los Alamitos Area Sewer District Board Meeting, 10/4 
11/01/21 Sunset Beach Sanitary District Board Meeting, 10/14 
11/01/21 Emerald Bay Service District Board Meeting, 10/20 

 
 



Mesa Water Board Meeting of December 8, 2021 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 
 

There are no support materials for this item. 
 


	AGENDA
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS
	1. Approve minutes of adjourned regular Board meeting of November 9, 2021.
	2. Approve minutes of regular Board meeting of November 10, 2021.
	3. Approve minutes of adjourned regular Board meeting of November 16, 2021.
	4. Approve attendance considerations (additions, changes, deletions).
	5. Board Schedule
	• Conferences, Seminars, and Meetings
	• Board Calendar

	6. Confirm the Board of Directors’ Regular Board Meeting schedule for Calendar Year 2022; and reschedule the Tuesday, 11/22/22 Board of Directors’ Committee Meeting to Tuesday, 11/15/22 and cancel the Tuesday, 12/27/22 Board ofDirectors’ Committee Meeting.

	PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
	7. FISCAL YEAR 2021 AUDIT RESULTS AND ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT
	Attachment A: Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended 2021
	Attachment B: CliftonLarsonAllen Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control OverFinancial Reporting for the Fiscal Year Ended 2021

	8. CAPTIVE INSURANCE

	ACTION ITEMS
	9. SETTING THE BOUNDARIES FOR THE DIVISIONS OF MESA WATER DISTRICT
	Attachment A: Map of Proposed Mesa Water District Divisions
	Attachment B: Map of Proposed & Existing Divisions, with Federal Census Data
	Attachment C: Draft Resolution No. 1557
	Attachment D: Resolution No. 1445, Redline

	10. CLAIM OF MARCO DANOVA
	Attachment A: Claim Form
	Attachment B: Department of Motor Vehicles Report of Traffic Accident

	11. CLAIM OF DAVITH KEO
	Attachment A: Claim Form


	REPORTS
	12. REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER
	• Key Indicators Report
	• Other (no enclosure)

	13. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS

	INFORMATION ITEMS
	14. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (AB 1234) PER CA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 53232.3 (D)
	15. OTHER (NO ENCLOSURE)





